
C o u n t y  o f  F a i r f a x ,  V i r g i n i a  
To protect and enrich the quality of life for the people, neighborhoods and diverse communities of Fairfax County 

Date: July 27, 2015 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 

SUBJECT: Request for Proposal (RFP) for FY 2016 Affordable Housing Capital 
Funds and Up to 75 Project-Based Vouchers 

APPLICATION CLOSING DATES/TIME: 
September 1, 2015 @ 4:00 P.M. for projects using local funds 
October 1, 2015 @ 4:00 P.M. for projects using exclusively federal funds 
September 1, 2015 @ 4:00 P.M. for project-based voucher applications 

OVERVIEW: The following are responses to questions received during the July 10, 2015 pre-
proposal conference for the FY 2016 Housing Blueprint Request for Proposals and the 2015 
Housing Choice Voucher competition. Taken together, these responses constitute Addendum 
No. 1 to the subject solicitation: 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS/JULY 10 PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE: 
1. Q: It is clear that there are two separate applications; if you intend to apply for both 

capital funding and Project Based Vouchers, do you need to complete both 
applications? 
A: Yes; applicants wishing to combine capital funds with Project Based Vouchers must 
complete applications for both capital funding and Project Based Vouchers. Applicants 
may mention in their capital funds application that they are also applying for PBV's, or 
vice versa, but again, bidders must apply separately. These are two distinct 
competitions and applications will be evaluated separately on their own merits. 

2. Q: Can applicants assume that if you receive capital funds, you will receive Project 
Based Vouchers? 
A: No; U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requirements for 
Project Based Vouchers dictate that the application process for vouchers be separate 
from that for the capital funds. Applicants should underwrite the transaction so the 
project works without vouchers, so there will be an added benefit of serving 
households with lower incomes if the vouchers were awarded. However, the Project 
Based Voucher application process has its own scoring criteria. 

3. Q: Can Project Based Vouchers be combined with federal HOME Investment 
Partnerships (HOME) and/or Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding? 
A: Yes; however, applicants must successfully make the case that the vouchers are 
needed. The application processes for affordable housing capital funds and the 
vouchers are separate competitions and there is no connection between rental subsidy 
and capital. Also, the Project Based Voucher subsidy may not be combines with other 
rental subsidies (such as HOME-funded Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA) or 
Bridging Affordability, for example). 
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4. Q: The leveraging expectation for the local funds is described as 3:1 - non-local 
dollars to local dollars; what is the expectation for the percentage of a deal that can be 
local funds? 
A: The goal is that each transaction with would include a no more than 33 percent of 
the total funding; however, this is only guideline and not a requirement 

5. Q: How ready does the project have to be to close, for the capital funds application? 
A: The project should have other equity sources in its financing plan (i.e. 4% or 9% 
Low Income Housing Tax Credits, first mortgage) and be in the process of applying for 
or already have these financing sources available. If applying for funds with a 
resource such in the next year, such as LIHTC, we expect your transaction to move 
forward with County funds (if already awarded) once the project receives tax credits 
from the Virginia Housing Development Authority. 

6. Q: What does a developer need to do if they are seeking for bond financing? 
A: Call HCD Real estate Finance Division (703-246-5170) to request a meeting to go 
over the project and its financing. December 15th is the deadline for issuing the bonds, 
so the process of applying for and receiving bond financing is very time sensitive. 

7. Q: If the project is not ready yet, what can we expect next year? 
A: Last year, Fairfax County did not use all of the capital funds, so we rolled them over 
into this year's allotment. If we do not use all of the funds this year, we can rollover 
into next year's allotment or use them on our own developments, subject to Board of 
Supervisors approval. 

8. Q: When are decisions for the funding awards made? 
A: It is anticipated that the county will present projects with local funding to the Board 
of Supervisors for consideration in the fall, well in advance of the Low Income Housing 
Tax Credit application deadline in March 2016. It is anticipated that the Project Based 
Voucher awards will be made by October 1st, and the HOME and CDBG funds should 
be awarded by December. 

9. Q: How soon should the Project Based Voucher units get leased after award? 
A: The PBV units should be leased up as soon as possible, and on the application you 
should indicate if those units are occupied or ready to lease. 

10. Q: Did Fairfax County get an award of Veteran's Affairs supportive Housing (VASH) 
vouchers? 
A; Yes; the Fairfax County Redevelopment and Housing Authority (FCRHA) currently 
has a total of 92 VASH vouchers. However, none of the VASH vouchers are included 
in the Project Based Voucher competition. Applicants for Project Based Vouchers who 
are planning to serve veterans as a priority population should mention that fact in their 
applications. 

11. Q: Are capital funds contingent on the award 9 percent LIHTC? 
A: If you propose to use Low Income Housing Tax Credits as a portion of the financing 
of your project, the final award of capital funds is contingent on the award of tax 
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credits. That is the idea, and you should mention in the application that you will be 
applying for tax credits in March. 

12. Q: Can the deadline for capital funds be pushed back? 
A: No; the deadline for projects using only local funds, or a combination of local and 
federal funds, is September 1; the deadline for projects proposing to use only federal 
funds is October 1. 

13. Q: If applying for all 75 PBV's and tax credits, do you still need a market study? 
A: Even if you are applying for all 75 PBV's and tax credits, you might still need to 
apply for a 1st mortgage. Because the first mortgage lender will require a market 
study, Fairfax County will require a copy of the market study as well. 

14. Q: If VHDA requires a market study, but not an appraisal, will HCD still require an 
appraisal? 
A: For the purpose of the application, an Opinion of Value from a qualified appraiser is 
sufficient. Appraisals are required for the purpose of underwriting and must be 
completed to the satisfaction of Fairfax County before a project will be brought to the 
Board of Supervisors for consideration. A market study will also be required. VHDA 
has guidelines to accept an appraisal that is no more than 6 months old, and the 
market study has to come from a third-party consultant that is from an approved list of 
consultants provided by VHDA. 

15. Q: Can the developer request bonds without credit enhancement? 
A: Yes, developers can do so with private placement along with a term sheet. 

16. Q: How long does Project-Based Voucher assistance last for? 
A: The Project Based Voucher assistance contracts are for fifteen (15) years. 

17. Q: What mix of voucher recipients is the county looking for? 
A: As stated in the application materials, the Fairfax County Redevelopment and 
Housing Authority is looking for homeless families, youth coming out of foster care, 
victims of domestic violence, people with disabilities, and no preference is given to any 
particular group. 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS/ POST PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE THROUGH JULY 
23: 

1. Q: Would serving households coming out of a domestic violence shelter situation be 
an allowable use under the Project Based Voucher program and the current 
competition? Could Project Based Vouchers be used for this purpose under a master 
lease situation? 
A.: Project Based Voucher assistance is attached to specific units that are to be 
identified in the application. Part of the criteria for eligibility is evidence of site control 
and a 15 year contract is executed with the owner of the property. In order to secure 
vouchers, the property must be under the control of the applicant. A scenario where 
an applicant would apply to have Project Based Vouchers "in hand", and then use 
them for clients as various units become available would not work for the Project 
Based Voucher program. 
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2. Q: It is my understanding that the value of the vouchers is $1000.00/month/unit. Is this 
an average cost? Since families come in various sizes, the rents will run between 
$1400-$2200/month. Does the organization absorb the remaining costs that exceeds 
35 percent of the family's income? 
A: Voucher subsidies are based on bedroom sizes. For instance, the maximum 
subsidy for a 1 bedroom unit is $1353, for a 2 bedroom it is $1538, for a 3 bedroom it 
is $2058 and so on. A participating family is placed into a particular bedroom size in 
accordance with the family composition and our occupancy standards. If the gross rent 
of the unit (rent + utilities) does not exceed the maximum subsidy level for that 
bedroom size, then the tenant will pay either 30 or 35 percent of their income for rent 
and utilities and our agency pays the remainder of the rent. The only reference to 
$1000/month/unit is related to the cost of work required for a unit to meet Housing 
Quality Standards. If that cost is less than $1000, then the unit is defined as an 
"existing" unit. If the cost exceeds $1000, then it is considered a "rehabilitated" unit. 
Again, this is totally unrelated to the "value of the voucher". 

3. Q: When an applicant first acquires Project Based Vouchers will they be able to apply 
the voucher to families already living in the requested units? If yes, is the family also 
able to renew their lease yearly upon passing income certifications? 
A: The FCRHA will determine eligibility for any families already leased in units 
identified for project-based assistance. If the families are eligible, the assistance can 
be applied to the unit and the families will be able to remain in the units receiving 
assistance and will be able to renew the lease each year as long as the family remains 
eligible. 

4. Q; What will the process be for maintaining the Project Based waiting list for an 
applicant's units? For example, how will an applicant be able to refer families to the 
waiting list? 
A: The FCRHA will establish a separate Project Based waiting list specifically for the 
applicant. The applicant may maintain its own waiting list and refer families to the 
FCRHA to be placed on the applicant's PBV waiting list that the FCRHA will establish. 
As vacancies occur, the FCRHA will select families solely from the applicant's PBV 
waiting list. 

5. Q: Please confirm the current applicable Fair Market Rents for 2 and 3 bed units. 
A: The rents for the project based voucher program are governed by the HUD 
published FMRs and comparable market rate rents. Ultimately, the gross rent (rent 
plus tenant paid utilities) cannot exceed 110% of the HUD published FMR. Following 
are the current maximum rents for 2 and 3 bedrooms: 

2 bedroom- HUD FMR- $1458 Max rent-$1458 x 110%= $1603 (must 
round down) 

3 bedroom- HUD FMR- $1951 Max rent-$1951 x 110%= $2146 

Please note that the allowable rent will be the lower of the maximum allowable rent 
and the comparable rent for similar, unassisted units on the premises or immediate 
area. 
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All other terms arid conditions remain unchanged. 

Kevin Sheehan, CPPB 
Contract & Procurement Coordinator 

THIS ADDENDUM IS CONSIDERED A PART OF THE SUBJECT REQUEST FOR 
PROPOSAL 
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